
 IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

TO OFFICE:  District 5 DATE:  September 22, 2015 

 

ATTENTION: Jim Armstrong REF. : Lucas County  

    BRF-34-6(79)--38-59 

FROM: Kevin K. Patel  PIN: 13-59-034-010 

 

OFFICE: Design 

 

SUBJECT: Field Exam   

 

A field exam was held on Thursday, September 3, 2015 to review the proposed plan for 

replacing a bridge on U.S. 34 over White Breast Creek, 1.6 miles east of east junction 

with U.S. 65. 

 

Those present for the field exam included the following: Mark Van Dyke and Jim Webb 

from District 5; Patricia Schwarz from the Office of Bridges and Structures; Tami Quam 

from the Office of Location and Environment; and Jason Holst, Jean Borton and Kevin 

Patel from the Office of Design. 

 

U.S. 34 is functionally classified as a commercial and industrial route and is a 

maintenance service level “B” roadway. The 2017 and 2037 ADT is estimated to be 

3,300 vpd and 3,400 vpd respectively with 18% trucks. The existing bridge has a 

sufficiency rating of 36.   

 

The proposed project will remove the existing 250 ft. x 32 ft. steel beam bridge and 

replace it with a 268 ft. x 44 ft. pretensioned prestressed concrete beam bridge. The 

proposed roadway typical section is a 28 ft. wide pavement with 8 ft. shoulders and 

6:1/3:1 foreslopes. The limits of mainline reconstruction will be limited to the new bridge 

and the adjacent bridge approach sections. It was requested to compare the proposed 

6:1/3:1 foreslopes with 4:1 foreslopes to see if the footprint would be reduced.  

 

Traffic on U.S. 34 will be maintained via a two-lane, on-site runaround placed on the 

south side of the roadway.  It was recommended to review shifting the runaround in 

closer to the mainline roadway to minimize impacts to the existing ditches and the 

adjacent utility lines. The shift in the runaround alignment would also shorten the length 

of the runaround and therefore provide more separation from the intersection with 167
th

 

Ave. at the east end of the project.   

 

The runaround will consist of a 28 ft. wide pavement (stripped to provide 11 ft. wide 

lanes with 3 ft. paved shoulders) and 3:1 foreslopes. The length of the runaround will be 

approximately 1400 ft. After the runaround is no longer required, a saw cut will be made 

to allow 4’ of the runaround to remain in place to become the 4’ paved shoulder. Six foot 

wide granular shoulders will be placed adjacent to the paved shoulders. 

 

A 200 ft. x 30 ft. temporary modular truss bridge will be used on the runaround to span 

over White Breast Creek. This bridge will be rented by the contractor. It was 

recommended to review how the guardrail would attach to the bridge rail. 



 

Rip-rap was recently placed under and adjacent to the White Breast Creek Bridge. It was 

recommended that this rip-rap be removed and placed under the temporary bridge. This 

rip-rap will then be salvaged and placed under the new bridge.  

 

The existing guardrail will be removed and new guardrail will be installed. The District 

will determine if the existing guardrail should be salvaged or become property of the 

contractor. 

 

It appears that no permanent or temporary right of way will be required; however, this 

will need to be verified.  

 

No plans are included in this submittal; however, the field exam plan with comments may 

be viewed as PDF files at: pw:\\projectwise.dot.int.lan:PWMain\Documents\Projects 

\5903401013\Design\D2Submittal\D2_59034079_Plan.pdf 

 

This project is currently scheduled for a December 2016 letting. The concept cost 

estimate for this project was $3,293,800. The current cost estimate is now approximately 

$3,532,500 ($2,837,800 for bridge items and $694,700 for roadway items). The 2016-

2020 Iowa Highway Program shows $15,000 for right of way in 2016, and $1,540,000 

for bridge replacement and $300,000 for wetland mitigation in FY 2017. 
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